
LEWIS AND CLARK LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

Tuesday March 16, 2021 5:00 p.m.   

Online/Virtual Meeting – Instructions Below 

 

 

Memo 

To: Library Board of Trustees 
From: John Finn, Director 
Date: March 9, 2021  
Re:  February 2021 report for the Board 

The Month That Was: The Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees met virtually on Tuesday 

February 23, 2021. Trustees Fandrich, Meadows, Schramm, Waterman, and Whearty were 

present. James Parrott, Collection Management Librarian, Library Director Finn, Administrative 

Manager Sternberg, and Public Services Manager Lisa Skelton were also present.  

 

James Parrott gave a presentation to the Board about the work of the Collection Diversity 

Committee. The Committee’s charge was to discover the width and breadth of the collections 

at all of the branches. What is missing? What do we have? Do we meet the needs of the whole 

community? The project was complex and involved the analyzation of statistics, census data 

and reports form the Montana Shared Catalog.  

 

Fandrich/Waterman moved to approve consent items.  

 

Board discussed the Service, Financial, General Ledger, Construction Ledger, and Personnel 

Reports.  

 

Waterman inquired about the possibility of a future agenda item on the intrinsic value of the 

library building and its collections. Finn said he would gather information and put that on the 

agenda. Meadows noted that in her estimation, the true value of the Library is in the services it 

provides. Finn will report back.  

 

The Board continued discussion of the Strategic Plan report that was started at their annual 

retreat in January. Discussion of key points included the need for further negotiations about a 

branch in East Helena. The Library’s lease is up for renegotiation in two years. Is the current 

building sufficient? Shall we begin thinking about a new building? What is the availability of 

space in East Helena at the moment? There was also discussion about the strategic plan item 

concerning a second outreach van to join the Bookmobile department. Finn and Skelton 

detailed how the use of a cargo sized van could assist in expanding services of the Bookmobile 

department.  

 



Finn and Sternberg presented the FY 2022 preliminary budget to the Board. The focus of this 

year’s budget, as it was last year, remains the repayment of the $2,000,000 Board of 

Investment Intercap Loan. Library Administration’s goal is to pay off the loan before its ten year 

term. There were questions about why the Foundation contributions were significantly lower 

this FY. Finn explained that the previous two year’s Foundation contributions included an 

additional $50,000 each year for the building project. That contribution is not happening this 

year. There were also questions about wages and salaries increasing by 1.9%. Finn and 

Sternberg explained that this increase is based on new positions, not on across the board pay 

raises. 

      

The Board had second readings of two polices. The Board read and amended the Library Service 

Animals Policy. The Board passed the amended Policy. The Library Card Policy was read again 

and passed without amendment.  

 

Library staff and the Board discussed the imminent move to Phase III reopening. Staff gave their 

report on what the plans look like. Staff explained that the have been working on these plans 

for months and are confident that the reopening will be smooth and safe for all involved. There 

is still anxiety and apprehension but confidence that it will all go well.  

 

Whearty discussed the possibility of nominating Lewis & Clark Library for the Montana Library 

Association Library of the Year. Finn said he would get her the information on the nomination 

process. 

 

The reopening has been a quiet success so far. The Libraries in Helena, East Helena, Augusta, 

and Lincoln all opened successfully over the weekend of March 5. Helena staff was happy that 

we were not overrun with patrons wanting to see the new spaces and that crowds remained 

subdued. Managers spent some of their days on Friday, Saturday, and Sunday regulating 

crowds and lines. Patrons inside the building were limited to 20 at a time. Patrons were very 

understanding. Patrons seemed joyful for a return to even limited services at each of the 

branches.  

 

The Month(s) Ahead:   

COVID numbers are declining quickly in Lewis & Clark County. The Reopening Committee is now 

beginning discussions on what Phase IV will look like, including the possible return of meeting 

room uses at the branches.  Phase IV will be considered when daily new case averages are 

below 10 cases for two weeks in a row.  

 

The Library Foundation Board will meet virtually on Thursday March 18 at Noon.  
 

 

 

 



Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees March Meeting 

Topic: March Library Board Meeting 

Time: March 16, 2021 05:00 PM Mountain Time (US and Canada)  

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/96202439001?pwd=K0FKcUtyTTVXK1RrSmVCYjJXdThJdz09 

Meeting ID: 962 0243 9001Passcode: 350522 

Dial by your location        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)        Meeting ID: 962 0243 9001 

https://zoom.us/j/96202439001?pwd=K0FKcUtyTTVXK1RrSmVCYjJXdThJdz09


 

 

BOARD MISSION STATEMENT 

 

The mission of the Lewis and Clark 

Library is to provide the best possible 

services and materials for 

informational, cultural or recreational 

use by the community. 

 

The mission of the Board of Trustees of 

the Lewis and Clark Library is to 

advance the mission of the library. 

 

 

 

 

 

Formally Adopted by the Board of 

Trustees October 17, 2006 



LEWIS & CLARK LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
LIBRARY ACRONYMS 

 
ALA  American Library Association 

APOP ‘Annual Piece of Paper’ – the yearly formal employee review process 

BVF  Broad Valleys Federation 

CST  Coal Severance Tax 

EHB  East Helena Branch of the Lewis & Clark Library 

FDN  Lewis & Clark Library Public Foundation 

HAT  ‘How Are Things?’ the informal quarterly employee review system 

ILL  Interlibrary Loan 

IMLS  Institute of Museum and Library Services 

LSTA  Library Services and Technology Act 

L.O.V’s  Library Outreach Volunteers 

MCH  Montana Committee for the Humanities 

MLA  Montana Library Association 

    PLD  Public Library Division 

    ASLD  Academic and Special Library Division 

    SLMD School and Library Media Division 

MLN  Montana Library Network 

MSC  Montana Shared Catalog 

MSL  Montana State Library 

NAC  Network Advisory Council 

NLS  National Library Service 

OCLC  Online Center Library Catalog 

OPAC   Online Public Access Catalog 

RFID  Radio Frequency Identification (book security tags) 

RSVP  Retired Service Volunteer Program 

RMDC  Rocky Mountain Development Council 

WIRED-MT Montana Library Listserv 

 



 
  

 LEWIS AND CLARK LIBRARY 
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

Tuesday March 16, 2021 5:00 p.m.   
To Meet Virtually via Zoom 

 
   

 
A   G   E   N   D   A 

 
Reading of the Board’s Mission Statement 

1) Public Comment 
2) Staff Report Lisa Skelton, Public Services Manager 

 
3) CONSENT ITEMS for March 2021  

A. Minutes of the February 23, 2021 Regular Meeting  
B. Service Report for February 2021 

 C. Financial Reports for February 2021 
 D. General and Construction Ledger for February 2021 
 E. Personnel Reports for February 2021  
 
MOTION . . . that the Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees approve the Consent Items as presented. 

 
4) NEW BUSINESS  

A. Introductory discussion of Naming Rights question 
 

B. Exhibits Policy - First Reading 
 

5) UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. FY 2022 Preliminary Budget 
 

MOTION . . . that the Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees approve the Library’s FY 2022 Preliminary 
Budget as presented/Amended. 

 
A. Branch and Bookmobile Highlights 
B. Library Reopening Committee Report  

 
C. CONSTRUCTION UPDATE 

 
D. DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS  
E. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
F. COMMENTS FROM TRUSTEES 

 
WRAP-UP and ADJOURN – Next Board Meeting – April 20, 2021 - TBD 
     



 
 
 
Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees   Minutes of the February 23, 2021 Meeting                                        

 

 
 

 
Lewis & Clark Library 

 Board of Trustees Meeting  
Online/Virtual Meeting 

February 23, 2021 
 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD MEMBERS: LeRoy Schramm, Judy Meadows, Helen Fandrich, Ron 
Waterman, Niki Whearty. 

 
STAFF MEMBERS:  Director John Finn, Director; Administrative Manager 

Patricia Sternberg; James Parrot, Collection 

Management Librarian; Lisa Skelton, Public Services 
Manager.  

 
OTHERS PRESENT: None. 

 
Chair Schramm called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 

 
Whearty read the Mission Statement. 

 
1) PUBLIC COMMENT  

 
2) STAFF REPORT – Collection Diversity Committee – James Parrot The 

Collection Diversity committee was instituted in the summer of 2020 upon 
request of Heather Dickerson, former Teen Librarian. The intent is to 

examine the collections in each of the Branches; discovering what the 

Library has, what is missing and what the patrons in the community may 
want to see. Parrot noted the importance of diversity in the Library 

collection, particularly in the fiction and biography sections. The committee 
is looking through the lens of meeting the need for each person to see 

themselves and other in story. The project is complex; involving statistics 
about the make-up of the Library service communities, census data, a 



 
 
 
Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees   Minutes of the February 23, 2021 Meeting                                        

report from the Montana Shared Catalog and a very large spreadsheet. 

Looking back over the last 5 months, Parrot does believe the collections - 
as well as the communities - are becoming more diverse. This is helped by 

publishers being more willing to take a chance on diverse voices. Lively 
discussion ensued. Parrot believes members of the committee may be 

willing to present at conference. Waterman requested that this project be 
reported out and made public on the website. 

 
3) CONSENT ITEMS 

 
Fandrich/Waterman moved that the Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees 

approve the Consent Items as presented.  
 

A. Minutes January 19, 2021. No comments. 
 

B. Service Report January 2021. No comments. 

 
C. Financial Report January 2021. Waterman wondered about the 

appraised value of the remodeled building and how the Library can 
communicate this value back to the taxpayers. His interest is in 

conveying to the community the value of the remodel as a return on 
the community’s investment and a platform from which many 

services of benefit to the community can be launched. Schramm 
requested a note be made to bring this back as a regular agenda item 

for discussion. Fandrich asked whether the Library had received the 
final bill from DAC. Finn will report back. 

 
D. General Ledger January 2021. Whearty expressed appreciation for 

this year’s The Big Read billboard. Finn noted it was a pilot project 
and that Adult Services Librarian Schwichtenberg had the idea. 

Whearty heartily endorsed the amount of advertising the Library got 

for the money and hopes it can happen again sometime. 
 

Construction General Ledger through January 2021. Schramm 
appreciated the report going back to 2019 and the beginning of the 

project. Fandrich is very interested in seeing the final bill. 
 

E. Personnel Report – January 2021. Finn discussed the personnel 
changes in January.  

 
MOTION passed unanimously. 

 



 
 
 
Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees   Minutes of the February 23, 2021 Meeting                                        

4) NEW BUSINESS  

 
A. Strategic Plan - Discussion Schramm opened the floor for specific 

questions about Library progress on the current Strategic Plan. Fandrich 
noted that there are only two years left on the EHB lease. Finn agreed 

that it could be time to form a committee to research possibilities and 
consider the planning process. Public Services Manager Skelton 

explained the ways a Library cargo van could support Outreach, the 
courier, and how it could be useful system-wide. Schramm wondered if 

the Foundation would be willing to assist with the purchase of the cargo 
van. Finn explained that work on the next Library Strategic Plan will 

begin early in 2022 and that the State Library is on board to help with 
the that process.  

 
B. FY 2022 Preliminary Budget Finn did an overview of the first draft of 

the Preliminary Budget for FY2022. This budget is driven by the 

repayment of the Intercap Loan. Finn explained that the Foundation 
contributed an extra $50,000 to help with construction and new Library 

furniture for the last two years. This budget line item has returned to 
the original Foundation ‘Wish List’ contribution amount of $25,000. The 

Boone Trust money that passes through the Foundation has not 
changed. There was discussion about wages and salaries increasing by 

1.9%. Finn is planning a salary survey for next year. 
 

5) UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A.  Lewis & Clark Library Service Animals Policy No substantive 
changes have been made to this policy from the last meeting. Meadows 

requested an edit to the third paragraph, middle of the 4th line to 
eliminate redundancy.   

 
Waterman/Fandrich moved that the Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees 

approve the Lewis & Clark Library Service Animals Policy as amended.  

 
MOTION CARRIED.  

 
B. Library Card Policy No discussion. 

 
Meadows/Waterman moved that the Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees 

approve the Lewis & Clark Library Card Policy as amended and/or presented.  
 

MOTION CARRIED.  
 



 
 
 
Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees   Minutes of the February 23, 2021 Meeting                                        

C. Branch Highlights Trustees noted and appreciated the collaborative 

work the Branches did with The Big Read this year.   
 

D. Library Re-Opening Committee Report Finn reported from the Re-
Opening committee that the new COVID case numbers are down and if 

the trend continues the Library could move into Phase III by Friday 
March 5th. Phase III allows for 20 masked patrons in the building at a 

time with a 30 minute suggested time limit. To allow for cleaning and 
social distancing, only half the public bathrooms and the computers will 

be available at any one time. Hours in Phase III are reduced as well. 
Holds pick-up in the lobby will still be available. The meeting rooms will 

not be available at this time. Whearty thanked everyone who worked 
hard on the Road to Reopening project. Finn will consult with the County 

Attorney about the Board being the final authority about mask usage. 
The Trustees fully support a mandate that patrons wear face masks 

covering nose and mouth. Fandrich asked that the Trustees be notified 

before the Library moves into Phase III. 
 

E. Construction Update Facilities Manager Schulte is working with Dick 
Anderson, Johnson Controls, and Mosaic to correct some issues with the 

installation of the new HVAC system. The companies are all still very 
responsive to Library construction needs as the project finalizes.  

 
6) DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS Finn is pleased with the forethought and 

planning that went into the Road to Reopening plan for the Library. While 
there may be a touch of apprehension on the part of staff, the Library is as 

prepared as it can be for patrons to return safely.   
 

7) COMMITTEE REPORTS None.  
 

8) COMMENTS FROM TRUSTEES Whearty would like to nominate Lewis  & 

Clark Library for an award at the upcoming MLA conference. She would 
also like to attend the conference. Meadows expressed incredulity at the 

possibility of the Library being open next week saying, “Forever might 
almost be over.” Fandrich sees this as a light at the end of the tunnel.  

 
9) WRAP UP 

 
 The March Board meeting will be Tuesday, March 16, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. 

Meeting location TBD. 
 

10) ADJOURN – The meeting adjourned at 6:27 p.m. 



 
 
 
Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees   Minutes of the February 23, 2021 Meeting                                        

 

 

                                                      LeRoy Schramm, Chair 
__________________________________ 

LeRoy Schramm, Chair    February 23, 2021 



Eleventh Full month of 2021 2020 Year to Year 2020 Month to Month

COVID-19 Closure February February Change January Change Footnote

Attendance 2,976 18,871 -84.2% 2,169 37.2% 1
Augusta 73 145 -49.7% 53 37.7% 1

East Helena 517 1,169 -55.8% 463 11.7% 1
Helena 2,197 16,153 -86.4% 1,497 46.8% 1
Lincoln 86 458 -81.2% 65 32.3% 1

Bookmobile 103 946 -89.1% 91 13.2% 1

Hours Open         492.00 681.00 -27.8% 435.00 13.1% 1

Augusta 104 100 4.0% 104 0.0% 1

East Helena 129 141 -8.5% 129 0.0% 1  

Helena 177 248 -28.6% 124 42.7% 1  

Lincoln 38 120 -68.3% 38 0.0% 1

Bookmobile 44 72 -38.9% 40 10.0% 1

Hourly Average 48 76 -37.1% 55 -13.6%

TOTAL TRANSACTIONS 23,568 51,829 -54.5% 24,118 -2.3%

New Cards 145 281 -48.4% 192 -24.5%
Augusta 1 2 -50.0% 3 -66.7% 1

East Helena 9 8 12.5% 9 0.0% 1

Helena 130 250 -48.0% 174 -25.3% 1

Lincoln 3 6 -50.0% 2 50.0% 1  

Bookmobile 2 15 -86.7% 4 -50.0% 1

New E-Book Users 114 136 -16.2% 166 -31.3% 1

Materials Checked Out 16,773 34,763 -51.8% 17,405 -3.6%
City of Helena 7,173 24,471 -70.7% 7,200 -0.4% 1

Lewis & Clark County N/A N/A 1

 Augusta Library 314 228 37.7% 193 62.7% 1

 East Helena Library 641 1,046 -38.7% 661 -3.0% 1

 Lincoln Library 340 399 -14.8% 343 -0.9% 1

 Bookmobile 356 1,358 -73.8% 565 -37.0% 1

 Interlibrary Loan 305 532 -42.7% 374 -18.4% 1

E-Audio 3,926 3,691 6.4% 4,156 -5.5% 1

E-Books 3,718 3,038 22.4% 3,913 -5.0% 1

Out of County N/A N/A 1

Self Check-Outs 0 17,360 N/A 0 N/A 1

System-Wide   Adopt A Book 630 2,021 -68.8% 3 20900.0% 1

Outreach 0 N/A 0 N/A 1

Feb. 2021

SERVICE REPORT



2021 2020 Year to Year 2020 Month to Month

February February Change January Change

Materials Used in House 5 4,409 -99.9% 5 0.0% 1

1

Periodicals Retrieved            Augusta 0 7 N/A 0 N/A 1  

East Helena 1 54 -98.1% 1 0.0% 1
Lincoln 0 0 N/A 0 N/A 1

Magazines on Tables            Augusta 0 0 N/A 0 N/A 1

East Helena 4 12 -66.7% 4 0.0% 1

Helena 0 992 N/A 0 N/A 1

Lincoln 0 0 N/A 0 N/A 1

Books Left on Table              Augusta 0 0 N/A 0 N/A 1

East Helena 0 21 -100.0% 0 N/A 1

Helena 0 3,300 N/A 0 N/A 1

Lincoln 0 23 N/A 0 N/A 1

 

Information and Reference 2,022 3,055 -33.8% 2,272 -11.0%
Reference 1,055 2,504 -57.9% 1,701 -38.0%

Database use 967 551 75.5% 571 69.4%

 

Internet Sign Up/Computer Users 1,942 5,895 -67.1% 1,082 79.5%
Augusta 0 27 -100.0% 0 N/A 1

East Helena 0 142 -100.0% 0 N/A 1  

Helena 0 2,475 N/A 0 N/A 1

Helena staff walk-abouts 0 231 N/A 0 N/A 1

Bookmobile 0 1 N/A 0 N/A 1

Lincoln 0 114 N/A 0 N/A 1

Wireless Use 1,941 2905 -33.2% 1,082 79.4% 1

 Laptop Checkouts 1 N/A 0 N/A 1

# Programs Story Time Attendance 130 616 -78.9% 128 1.6% 1
0 Augusta 0 12 N/A 0 N/A 1
0 East Helena 0 81 N/A 0 N/A 1
0 Helena 0 243 N/A 0 N/A 1
0 Lincoln 40 53 -24.5% 44 -9.1% 1
4 Bookmobile 90 227 -60.4% 84 7.1% 1  



2021 2020 Year to Year 2020 Month to Month

February February Change January Change

# Programs Tours,  Program & Outreach 2,551 2,810 -9.2% 3,034 -15.9%  

3 Helena/Adult 30 204 -85.3% 243 -87.7% 1

3 Helena/Juv 640 80 700.0% 900 -28.9% 1

7 Helena/Teen 58 234 -75.2% 0 N/A 1

0 Teen Outreach 0 135 N/A 0 N/A 1  

1 Director Outreach 1000 1500 -33.3% 1000 0.0% 1

3 Bookmobile 240 603 -60.2% 403 -40.4% 1

7 Augusta 150 21 614.3% 126 19.0% 1

14 East Helena 263 553 -52.4% 304 -13.5% 1

1 Lincoln 170 83 104.8% 58 193.1% 1

0 Detention Center - Requests/Filled 0 0 N/A 0 N/A 1

Meeting Room Usage 2 44 -95.5% 2 0.0%
Augusta 0 0 N/A 0 N/A 1

Helena 0 17 N/A 0 N/A 1

East Helena 0 7 N/A 0 N/A 1

Lincoln 2 20 -90.0% 2 0.0% 1  

Registered Borrowers 24,941 23,606 5.7% 24,824 0.5%
Helena 22,674 21,529 5.3% 22,568 0.5% 1

Augusta 278 258 7.8% 277 0.4% 1

 East Helena 689 602 14.5% 682 1.0% 1  

Bookmobile 939 899 4.4% 938 0.1% 1

Lincoln 361 318 13.5% 359 0.6% 1

Out-of-County 1

Volunteer Hours Worked 130 239 -45.6% 162 -19.8%  

Volunteer Hours 0 59 N/A 0 N/A 1

  Library Board Hours 45 45 0.0% 60 -25.0% 1

Foundation Board Hours 85 90 -5.6% 100 -15.0% 1

EHB Friends of the Library Hours 0 45 N/A 2 N/A 1  

Web Site Hits 18,071 20,308 -11.0% 21,261 -15.0%

Social Media  Hits Adult, Teen, BkMobile 6,910 4,667 48.1% 6,786 1.8%  

Mobile Application Uses 242 0 N/A 368 -34.2%

EdVenture Pass Uses 0 13 N/A 0 N/A

Footnote 1 Feb. 2021 Eleventh month of COVID-19 Closure


	21-07 February 23,  2021 Meeting DRAFT.pdf
	Board of Trustees Meeting
	Online/Virtual Meeting
	February 23, 2021
	MINUTES
	Chair Schramm called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m.
	Whearty read the Mission Statement.
	1) PUBLIC COMMENT
	2) STAFF REPORT – Collection Diversity Committee – James Parrot The Collection Diversity committee was instituted in the summer of 2020 upon request of Heather Dickerson, former Teen Librarian. The intent is to examine the collections in each of the B...
	7) COMMITTEE REPORTS None.
	8) COMMENTS FROM TRUSTEES Whearty would like to nominate Lewis  & Clark Library for an award at the upcoming MLA conference. She would also like to attend the conference. Meadows expressed incredulity at the possibility of the Library being open next ...
	9) WRAP UP
	10) ADJOURN – The meeting adjourned at 6:27 p.m.


